
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – if needed 
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Pastor Chris Hrabosky, Seven Lakes Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Tami Golden, Internal Auditor 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS 
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Limited Obligation Bond / USDA Loans Refunding Opportunity (Mitch Brigulio) 
 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
B. Donation of 2 Surplus Patrol Cars to Sandhills Community College 
C. Acceptance of Sandhills Alliance Church Deed of Dedication 
D. Additions to Fee Schedule for Department of Aging 
E. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Lot 9A 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Public Hearing/Administration – Limited Obligation Bonds and USDA Refunding 
(Caroline Xiong) 
 

B. Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Text Amendment to the Unified Development 
Ordinance (Debra Ensminger) 
 



 2

C. Call to Public Hearing/Planning – FY18 5311 Community Transportation Program 
Funding Application (Debra Ensminger) 

 
D. Call to Public Hearing/Monarch – FY18 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 

with Disabilities Funding Application (Rahnelle Rosado) 
 

E. Call to Public Hearing/Legal – Economic Development Incentive (Misty Leland) 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Moore County Schools – NC Education Lottery Application: Land Acquisition for New 
Southern Pines Elementary School (John Birath) 

 
B. Public Works – Request for Approval of Water Pollution Control Plant Service Contract 

for Bio-Solids Trucking (Randy Gould) 
 

C. Public Works – Request for Approval of Camp Easter Road Water Project Ordinance 
(Randy Gould) 

 
D. Public Works – Request for Approval of Camp Easter Road Sewer Project Ordinance 

(Randy Gould) 
 

E. Legal – Consideration of Revision to Moore County Noise Ordinance (Misty Leland / 
Neil Godfrey) 

 
F. Administration – Request for Adoption of Resolution Regarding Moore County Schools 

Funding Formula (Wayne Vest) 
 

G. Administration – Request for Adoption of Resolution Regarding Sandhills Community 
College Funding Formula (Wayne Vest) 

 
H. Administration – Request for Adoption of Resolution Regarding Court Facility Project 

Funding (Wayne Vest) 
 

IX. APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. RSVP Advisory Council 
 

B. Library Board of Trustees 
 

X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 3

COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 RSVP Advisory Council, Thursday, October 6, 3:00 (Daeke) 
 PIP Executive Bd., Friday, October 7, 8:00am (Saunders) 
 Board of Health, Monday, October 10, 6:00pm (Picerno) 
 PIP Board, Tuesday, October 11, 8:00am (Graham/Saunders) 
 Airport Authority, Tuesday, October 11, 10:00am (Saunders) 
 Sandhills Center Bd, Tuesday, October 11, 7:00pm (Ritter) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, October 12, 9:00am (Daeke/Picerno) 
 Drug Free Moore Co, Thursday, October 13, 8:30am (Ritter) 
 Fire Commission, Thursday, October 13, 6:00pm (Ritter) 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, October 19, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Library Board, Wednesday, October 19, 3:30pm (Daeke) 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, October 18, closed session 4:30pm, open 5:30pm 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, October 25, 8:30am (Saunders) 
 Animal Operations Bd., Thursday, October 27, 6:00pm (Picerno) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 5:30 p.m., Tuesday, September 20, 
2016 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North 
Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None 
       
****************************************************************************************** 
 
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Reverend Rick Martindale of Carthage Presbyterian 
Church provided the invocation and Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There were no speakers. 
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to add to 
the agenda consideration of a resolution accepting the high bid for the Bengston property. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
Moore County Library Strategic Plan 
 
Dr. Anthony Chow, consultant for development of a comprehensive three-year plan to guide the Sandhills 
Regional Library System in fulfilling the needs of patrons, presented a summary of the strategic plan for Moore 
County.  Discussion followed regarding how Moore County’s priorities and poverty, dropout rates, etc. in 
comparison to surrounding counties in the region.  Chairman Picerno thanked Dr. Chow for his presentation, 
which is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix A. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V. A.10/4/2016



 2

Limited Obligation Bonds and USDA Refunding 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest introduced Mitch Brigulio and Ted Cole with Davenport and Company, the 
County’s financial advisors, to present information related to a bond refunding opportunity for the 2010 Limited 
Obligation Bonds and the USDA East Moore Water District loans 2003, 2008A, and 2008B.  Mr. Brigulio 
presented the information, providing details for potential savings using bank loan for the LOBs only, public sale 
for the LOBs only, and public sale for the LOBs and USDA, and he answered the Board’s related questions.  
The presentation is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix B. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: September 6, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
Minutes: September 8, 2016 Special Meeting 
Tax Releases/Refunds – August 2016 
Williams Sand and Clay, LLC Board Order 
HCE Moore II Solar Collector Facility Board Order 
Globe Communications Contract Amendment # 3 
Legislative Goals 
Moore County Schools Digital Learning Invoices 
Partners in Progress FY17 Funding Agreement 
Carolina Meter and Supply Sole Source 
 
The tax releases/refunds resolutions, Williams Sand and Clay Board Order, and HCE Moore II Solar Board 
Order are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices C, D, and E, respectively. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Call to Public Hearing – Limited Obligation Bonds and USDA Refunding 
 
In follow-up to the earlier presentation on the LOBs and USDA refunding, County Manager Wayne Vest 
requested the Board call a public hearing pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-20(g).  A resolution regarding the same 
was introduced by Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the resolution calling a public hearing in 
connection with the County’s consideration of the issuance of limited obligation bonds of the County in an 
amount not to exceed $33,000,000 in order to refund certain existing limited obligation bonds and to acquire 
refunding bonds of the East Moore Water District.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these 
minutes by attachment as Appendix F.  Vice Chairman Saunders then made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Graham, to proceed with the 2010 Limited Obligation Bond and East Moore Water District 
USDA refunding using a negotiated sale approach, to allow Moore County’s financial advisor, Davenport and 
Company, to assist with the development of the request for proposals (RFP) for selecting the underwriting 
firm(s), and to allow Davenport and Company to select the most qualified firm(s) from the submitted proposals.  
Vice Chairman Saunders discussed the change in basis points since information on this refunding opportunity 
was first presented to the Board at a September 8, 2016 work session and asked if the Board could be updated 
again in two weeks.  Mr. Brigulio confirmed an update would be provided and that Davenport would provide 
staff with updates along the way.  The motion carried 5-0. 



 3

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Sheriff’s Office: 
 
Request for Approval of Contract with Stanley Convergent Security Solutions 
 
Sheriff Neil Godfrey requested the Board’s approval of a contract with Stanley Convergent Security Solutions 
to provide and program twenty-two additional cameras within the booking area and inmate housing areas of the 
Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the sole source contract with Stanley Convergent Security Solutions, 
Inc. for the purchase and programming of twenty-two (22) cameras for the Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center 
and to authorize Chairman Nick Picerno to sign the contract pending the final approval by County Attorney 
Misty Leland and the pre-audit by Finance Director Caroline Xiong. 

 
Request for Approval of Contract with NMS Labs for Forensic Drug Analysis and DNA Testing 
 
Sheriff Godfrey asked the Board to approve a contract and sole source justification with NMS Labs to provide 
forensic drug analysis and DNA testing for criminal investigations.  He reviewed that the Sheriff’s Office had 
relied on the NC State Crime Lab for this analysis and testing for several years.  However, there was a 
significant backlog in the State Crime Lab which had resulted in delayed arrests and prosecution and in some 
cases the backlog had even resulted in cases being dismissed.  While the backlog had been somewhat reduced, it 
was still an issue and so the Sheriff contracted with NMS Labs the previous year, enabling his office to 
prosecute criminal cases in a timely manner.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the sole source contract with NMS Labs for providing 
forensic drug analysis and DNA testing for the Sheriff’s Office and to authorize the County Manager to sign the 
contract. 

 
Human Resources: 
 
Request for Approval of Employee Health Improvement Incentive Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Denise Brook requested the Board’s approval to award a bonus of $250 to each 
County employee meeting criteria in the Employee Health Improvement Incentive Plan for waist circumference.  
Ms. Brook reviewed that in December 2013, the Board approved the Health Improvement Incentive Plan.  
Employees participating in the plan’s biometric screening, consisting of a blood draw, blood pressure reading, 
and measurement of height/weight receive a $15.00 bi-weekly discount on the medical coverage premium.  Ms. 
Brook proposed that beginning with the biometric screening in the spring of 2017, employees participating in 
the incentive plan would have body measurements taken including a baseline reading for waist circumference.  
In the spring of 2018, employees meeting the moderate control of a waist circumference of <40” for males and 
<35” for females, or showing a 5% improvement in waist circumference or weight, would receive a $250 cash 
bonus.  Staff projected that approximately 60% of the employee population participating in the plan would meet 
the criteria which would incur an expense of $88,000.   
 
Commissioner Graham asked whether this proposal had been researched by Legal and wondered whether it 
could be perceived as discriminatory.  Ms. Brook confirmed the recommendation had been approved by Legal 
and she clarified that it was a reward, not a penalty.  Further discussion ensued amongst the Board including 
how to accommodate transgendered or pregnant individuals.  Chairman Picerno said he agreed with the concept 
but feared the County could end up in a legal battle.  Commissioners Graham and Ritter concurred.  Vice 



 4

Chairman Saunders discussed the self-insurance being a significant part of the County’s budget and the value of 
considering things to improve that, but indicated his agreement that this particular proposal could be 
troublesome down the road.  County Manager Wayne Vest reviewed that the County was currently doing some 
level of biometric screening with participants getting a discount on their health insurance.  He said Ms. Brook 
was bringing this item forward as follow-up to the original discussions on the screening program and that it was 
an effort to ensure the County’s self-insurance was sustainable.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, 
seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to not go forward with this (bonus incentive for waist 
circumference as proposed). 
 
Planning: 
 
Request for Approval of Revised Assistance Policy under the 2015 Urgent Repair Program 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger asked the Board to approve an update to the 2015 Urgent Repair Program 
Assistance Policy, which would bring the policy within the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency’s 
standards.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 
to allow the Chairman to execute the revised Assistance Policy related to the 2015 Urgent Repair Program.   

 
Public Safety: 
 
Request for Approval of EMS Physical Agility Testing Standards 
 
Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips requested the Board’s approval of EMS physical agility testing standards 
for new applicants and current EMS employees.  Commissioner Ritter inquired regarding who set the standards 
and Mr. Phillips said they were based on standards used by Nash and Mecklenburg Counties by a private 
company.  Commissioner Ritter asked whether the testing could be considered discriminatory and Mr. Phillips 
said no as it was job specific, and he said it had been reviewed and approved by the Human Resources and 
Legal Departments.  Vice Chairman Saunders said he thought this was a great idea and appeared reasonable.  
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the Moore County EMS physical agility testing.  The test as presented to the commissioners is hereby 
incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix G. 
 
Request for Approval of Radio Communications Contracts 
 
Mr. Phillips asked the Board to approve contracts with Radio Communications Company for eligible and non-
eligible expenditures related to the maintenance and operations of equipment for the 911 Center.  One contract 
would be for $35,000 for 911 eligible expenditures and the other for $30,000 for 911 non-eligible expenditures.  
Chairman Picerno asked how the 911 Board could determine that tower maintenance was not 911 specific.  Mr. 
Phillips said they put out the rules and they were non-negotiable.  Chairman Picerno asked if that board was 
elected or appointed and Mr. Phillips said he did not know but would find out.  Vice Chairman Saunders if there 
would be any financial change and Mr. Phillips said no.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the 911 non-eligible contract with Radio 
Communications Company, including the sole source, for the amount not to exceed $30,000 and authorize the 
Chairman to execute and sign all necessary documents.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the 911 eligible contract with Radio 
Communications Company, including the sole source, for the amount not to exceed $35,000 and authorize the 
Chairman to execute and sign all necessary documents. 

 



 5

Request for Approval to Apply for NC 911 Board Grant 
 
Mr. Phillips asked the Board to approve acceptance of $586,404 from the NC 911 Board competitive grant for 
the implementation of the back-up 911 center and Location Prime Alert System.  The Board discussed the 
determination of the award of these funds by a non-elected, non-accountable board.  Mr. Phillips shared 
information on the source of funding and then discussed requirements for the facility, which would have to be 
operational by June 30, 2017.  There was further discussion amongst commissioners.  Chairman Picerno made a 
motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to accept the 2017 PSAP grant for $586,404 for implementation 
of the back-up 911 center and implement the Location Prime Alert System to enhance the level of service 
provided by Moore County Communications and authorize the Chairman to execute and sign all necessary 
documents upon legal and financial approvals.  Chairman Picerno read an excerpt of the letter from the State 
regarding acceptance of the award, expressing discontent.  The motion to accept the funds carried 5-0.   
 
Administration: 
 
Request for Addition of Capital Projects Manager Position 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest requested the Board’s approval of the addition of a Capital Project Manager 
position.  He reviewed that large capital projects require a considerable amount of development and oversight to 
ensure completion in a timely and cost effective manner.  He said the current fiscal year 2017 budget did not 
include funding for this position.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the addition of Capital Project Manager, grade 128 to the County of 
Moore Position Classification and Pay Plan.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by 
Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the addition of one full time position to the FY 2017 
Position Authorization Document.   

 
Consideration of Bids for Seven Lakes Well Lots 
 
Mr. Vest informed the Board that bids had been received for six abandoned well site lots owned by the County 
in Seven Lakes.  He reviewed that at the Board’s August 16, 2016 regular meeting, it was reported that a single 
bid had been received for six abandoned well sites owned by the County within the Seven Lakes West 
Landowners boundaries.  The SLWLA submitted a bid for $30,000.  However, per legal guidance, the Board 
directed Mr. Vest to inform the bidder that the properties should be bid individually to maintain the 
competitiveness of the process.  The County subsequently received from the SLWLA individual bids for the 
same six lots, with the total amount bid price as $19,000, versus the $30,000 received as a single bid.  Chairman 
Picerno inquired whether the Board could initiate the upset bid process for one of the lots but renegotiate the 
others and this was confirmed.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 
the Board voted 5-0 to initiate the upset bid process on Lot 9A and go back and renegotiate the others.   
 
Acceptance of Bid for Bengston Property 
 
Mr. Vest presented for the Board’s consideration a resolution accepting the high (and only) bid of $350,000 for 
the Bengston property by Mr. Jonathan Greggory Martin.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the resolution accepting the high bid of 
$350,000 and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as 
a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix H. 

 
 



 6

APPOINTMENTS 
 

Town of Aberdeen Planning Board ETJ 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint Heidi Whitescarver as an ETJ member of the Town of Aberdeen Planning Board for a term 
commencing retroactively to June 30, 2016 and expiring June 30, 2019. 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest reported that the County’s fuel supply was being monitored as a result of a recent 
shortage (due to a pipeline leak in Alabama). 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
Commissioner Ritter asked County Manager Wayne Vest to collect some information from Moore County 
Partners in Progress including a presentation recently made to prospective business people and who was 
included in that meeting and how many town council meetings PIP Executive Director Pat Corso had attended 
and where.  Commissioner Ritter expressed his concern that PIP was not doing enough to address the needs of 
the northern portion of the County, nor those of Vass and Cameron.  He said the development of the whole 
county was important.  He also addressed a new study PIP proposed to be completed by a consultant out of Lee 
County and expressed his dissatisfaction with this decision to consult with someone outside Moore County. 
 
Commissioner Graham thanked attendees of the meeting for being present and invited them to come back.   
 
Vice Chairman Saunders shared that as he left the Board at the end of the year he would miss the inspiring 
intelligence of Mitch Brigulio and Ted Cole with the County’s financial advisors, Davenport and Company. 
 
Chairman Picerno discussed the County’s public/private relationship with Partners in Progress, saying certain 
information kept private should be public because of the use of public funds.  He indicated he understood the 
organization’s mission and thought it was a good one, but said the issue he had was with the way the Partners 
Board operated.  He shared that letters he had received regarding the PIP funding agreement did not influence 
his decision not to make an issue of it because he had not read them, thinking they were personal mail since 
they were not addressed to him as a commissioner.  Chairman Picerno said his problem was with the 
compensation of the director of the organization as it was not in line with positions such as the County 
Manager, County Attorney, Sheriff, and Public Safety Director.  He said that going forward, one of the tasks of 
the new Board of Commissioners should be to rein that (salary) in.   
 
Chairman Picerno also commented on the State Crime Lab delays as discussed by the Sheriff earlier in the 
meeting, saying that what the Sheriff had shared was not consistent with claims made by the State Attorney 
General.  He also lamented the lack of response from the Attorney General’s Office regarding the County’s 
inquiry into high gas prices relative to other areas.  He said the County had been trying to get answers on that 
issue for two and a half years. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
enter into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and (a)(4). 



 7

The Board reported no action upon returning from closed session.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to come out of closed and seal the minutes. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner 
Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the September 20, 2016 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 7:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
        __________________________________________ 
        Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date: 10/04/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Sheriff Neil Godfrey 
 
DATE:            September 23rd, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: Donation of two surplus Patrol Cars to Sandhills Community College   
 
PRESENTER:  Kevin Fleece 
 
REQUEST: 
 

We are requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve the attached resolution declaring 
the two vehicles described in this resolution as surplus equipment and authorizing the conveyance of 
the two surplus vehicles to the Sandhills Community College.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

Sandhills Community College provides the Basic Law Enforcement Training (BLET) 
Program to students who are hired by the Sheriff’s Office and by other law enforcement agencies 
within Moore County.  As part of the BLET Program, Sandhills Community College is required to 
provide forty (40) hours of law enforcement driver training.  Twenty-eight (28) hours of the required 
training requires the student to actually drive a vehicle on an obstacle course. 

Sheriff Godfrey and County Manager Wayne Vest received a written request from Dave 
Reece, the School Director for the BLET program, on or about July 10th, 2016 describing the need for 
vehicles in order for Sandhills Community College to safely continue to provide the driver training. 

I have attached a copy of the letter of request for these vehicles. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

If approved, Captain Kevin Fleece will assist Property Management with the transfer of the 
titles of ownership for these two vehicles from Moore County to the Sandhills Community College 
for use in the Basic Law Enforcement Training Program. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

Garage Fleet Supervisor Barry Oldham estimated the value of the two cars to be 
approximately $3,500.00 each for a total value of approximately $7,000.00. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 

Sheriff Neil Godfrey recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve this 
recommendation.  Sheriff Godfrey is making this recommendation because Sandhills Community 
College provides the Basic Law Enforcement Training (BLET) Program to students who are hired by 
the Sheriff’s Office and by other law enforcement agencies within Moore County.   

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.



 
Motion that the Board of Commissioners approve this resolution declaring the two vehicles described 
in this resolution as surplus equipment and authorizing the conveyance of the two surplus vehicles to 
the Sandhills Community College.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution  
2. Letter requesting the donation from Sandhills Community College 



 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN COUNTY-OWNED PERSONAL PROPERTY AS 

SURPLUS AND CONVEYING SAID PROPERTY TO SANDHILLS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Moore, on behalf of the Moore County Sheriff’s Office, presently owns 
two used vehicles, a 2006 Ford Crown Victoria (VIN #2FAFP71W76X157817) and a 2010 
Ford Crown Victoria (VIN #2FABP7BV1AX117228), both of which were formerly used by 
the Sheriff’s Office as patrol vehicles (the “Surplus Equipment”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Sandhills Community College provides a Basic Law Enforcement Training (BLET) 
program, which trains a number of law enforcement officers that are hired within Moore County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sandhills Community College is seeking help from the County to replace several of its 
BLET vehicles, one of which is approximately 18 years old and two that are in excess of 10 years 
old; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sandhills Community College would like to acquire the Surplus Equipment for their 
Basic Law Enforcement Training program; and 
 
WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 153A-176 permits the County to “dispose of real or personal property 
belonging to it according to the procedures prescribed in Chapter 160A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A-274(b) permits the County to, “upon such terms and conditions as it 
deems wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell to, or purchase 
from any other governmental unit any interest in real or personal property.” 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Moore County Board of Commissioners declares the 
Surplus Property described above as surplus. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Moore County Board of Commissioners authorizes the 
conveyance of the Surplus Equipment to Sandhills Community College. 
 
Adopted this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
 

  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 







  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  10/4/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  September 23, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Sandhills Alliance Church- Deed of Dedication 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
  
REQUEST: 
Accept the Deed of Dedication for water and/or sewer facilities from the Sandhills Alliance Church and 
authorize the Chairman to sign.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Sandhills Alliance Church requested water and sewer service from Moore County Public Works to 
their church on Trotter Drive.  The pipelines and appurtenances were constructed by the Church, are 
completed and have been accepted.  The County will own the facilities up to the water meter and sewer 
cleanout on the property as a result of this Deed of Dedication. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve Deed of Dedication, authorize execution and record in the Register of Deeds office.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The cost to the County associated with this deed will be the recording fee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to accept the Deed of Dedication from the Sandhills Alliance Church and authorize the 
Chairman to sign.   
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Deed of Dedication. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I: PublicWords/Developments/Sandhills Alliance Church/Memo to Board 092316 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mail after recording to: Moore County Attorney’s Office, P.O. Box 905, Carthage, NC  28327 
This instrument was prepared by: Brian Godfrey, Asst. County Attorney 
Brief description for the Index:  

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA DEED OF DEDICATION 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 

THIS DEED OF DEDICATION is made and entered into this 27th day of September, 2016, by 
and between SANDHILLS ALLIANCE CHURCH, with an office and place of business located at 
111 Trotter Drive in Pinehurst, NC, and conducting business in MOORE COUNTY, North Carolina, 
hereinafter referred to as "Grantor," and the County of Moore, a governmental entity created and 
existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, with a mailing address of P.O. Box 905, 
Carthage, NC 28327, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee." 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the developer of a tract or parcel located in the Mineral Springs 
Township, Moore County, North Carolina, known as Sandhills Alliance Church (the "Property"); and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor has caused to be installed water and/or sewer pipelines under a portion of 

the Property, hereinafter described and referenced; and 
 
WHEREAS, Grantor wishes to obtain water and/or sewer service from Grantee for the Property 

and to make water and/or sewer from Grantee's system available to individual owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, Grantee has adopted through appropriate resolution a stated policy regarding water 

distribution and/or sewer collection systems under the terms of which, among other things, in order 
to obtain water and/or sewer service for the Property, Grantor must convey title to the water 
distribution and/or sewer collection system to Grantee through an instrument of dedication 
acceptable to Grantee. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Grantor, in consideration of Grantee accepting said water and/or sewer 

pipelines and making water and/or sewer available to the Property, has conveyed by these presents 
and does hereby convey to Grantee, its lawful successors and assigns, the following described 
property: 



 
All water and/or sewer pipelines, equipment, and apparatuses used in 
the water distribution and/or sewer collection system that is 
constructed upon the property more fully depicted in the plat recorded 
at Map Book 8, Page 14, and Plat Cabinet 6, Slide 160, within the 
Moore County Registry, which plats are hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said property above described together with the privileges and 
appurtenances thereto belonging to Grantee forever subject to the conditions herein expressed. 

 
The Grantor will, for and on behalf of the County, acquire any easements or encroachment 

agreements necessary to permit the above described personal property to be located upon the real 
property where it is located.  Any easement will be for the purposes of constructing, repairing, 
operating, and maintaining underground water pipelines.  The Grantee shall have the right to go upon 
the Property with motor vehicles or other repair and maintenance equipment for the purposes of 
constructing, inspecting, maintaining, and repairing pipelines.  Where paved private streets, 
driveways, parking lots, fence, docks, shrubs, flowers, ornaments, etc. have been installed within the 
easement, Grantee will not be responsible for the repair or replacement of such facilities which must 
be removed to facilitate repairs.  Any excavations shall be backfilled to approximately the original 
grade and a stone surface placed in traffic areas.  No large shrubs, trees, docks, drives or parking 
areas shall be installed inside the easement without approval from the Grantee.  Building structures 
are not allowed within the easement without the approval of the Grantee. 

 
Furthermore, Grantor does hereby covenant that it is seized of said personal property described 

above and has the right to convey the same, that the same is free and clear of encumbrances, and that 
it will warrant and defend the title to the same against all persons whomsoever. 

 
Grantor agrees and understands that Grantee conditionally accepts the personal property being 

dedicated by Grantor. Grantor is responsible for maintaining the personal property for one year 
following September 27, 2016. Beginning August 27, 2017, Grantee will have until September 27, 
2017, to inspect the personal property.  Grantor will be provided with a list of items that must be 
resolved prior to the Grantee’s final acceptance of the personal property.  If Grantor fails to resolve 
the items as required by Grantee, then Grantee may, in its sole discretion, revoke this Deed of 
Dedication. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this instrument to be duly executed as of the 
day and year first written above. 
 
 

  (Seal) 
Grantor’s Signature 

 
 
             

Grantor’s Name 
 
 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that 
__________________________________ personally came before me this day, and I have seen 
satisfactory evidence of the principal's identity, by a current state or federal identification with 
the principal's photograph in the form of a __________________________________; and he/she 
has acknowledged that he/she is the Organizer of __________________________________, a 
North Carolina limited liability company, and that he/she, as Organizer, being authorized to do 
so, executed the foregoing on behalf of ___________________________________. 

 
Witness my hand and official seal, this ____ day of _______________, 2016 

 
 
   
 Signature of Notary Public 
 
    
 (NOTARY SEAL) Printed Name of Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:   
 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF DEED 
 

This Deed of Dedication and accompanying Affidavit was accepted by the Moore County 
Board of Commissioners on the ____ day of ________________________, 2016. 
 
 
 COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
   
 Chairman’s Signature 
 Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Clerk’s Signature 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 
         Meeting Date: 10/04/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Terri Prots, Aging Director 
    
 
DATE: September 19, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Additions to Aging Fee Schedule  
 
 
REQUEST:  The Department of Aging Director respectfully requests two additions to the Aging Fee 
Schedule: 

1) Sponsorship dollars from private enterprises, ranging from $25-$1,000. 
2) Calendars for $10 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  Fee schedule modifications are typically performed during the budget process; 
however, the Department of Aging finds it necessary to request a revision at this time. Nursing 
homes, assisted living facilities, and home care agencies all have marketing budgets and are eager to 
participate in various Senior Enrichment Center projects and programs (providing refreshments, 
helping to cover the cost of implementing a program).  
 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Once approved, we can proceed with fundraising activities that 
involve nursing homes, assisted living facilities, and home care agencies which allow us to enhance 
programming. We would also like to sell 2017 calendars to raise funds and awareness for the Family 
Caregiver Program’s In Home Respite service (fundraising goal of $3,000). 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: Permitting the solicitation of sponsorships will allow 
quality programs provided by the Senior Enrichment Center. Their marketing funds will not only 
allow us to enhance programming, but also reserve our limited grant funds while increasing their 
exposure in the community.  
 
There is high demand and limited grant funds regarding the In Home Respite service. Funds raised 
from the sale of 2017 calendars will allow us to expand the service to more caregivers (not just give 
more hours to current clients). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  Authorize the County’s Internal Auditor to revise the 
Department of Aging’s fee schedule to include sponsorships (for various amounts, ranging from $25-
$1,000) and the sale of 2017 calendars ($10) to benefit the Family Caregiver Program’s In Home 
Respite service. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS:  Current FY 17 fee schedule 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.





 Agenda Item:     
 Meeting Date: October 4, 2106 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney 
 
DATE:  September 27, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 9-A 
 
REQUEST: 
Adopt a resolution accepting the negotiated offer of $9,000 for certain real property known as Well 
Site 9-A, having Parcel ID/LRK #00026759 and authorizing the upset bid process. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County acquired by warranty deed certain real property upon which it operated a well referred to 
as Well Site 9-A.  Since that time the County has abandoned the well located upon the property and 
the property is no longer in use.  According to the Moore County Tax Department, the property has 
appraised land values of $4,130. 
 
On September 13, 2016, the County received an offer for Well Site 9-A in the amount of $9,000 from 
the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
After adopting the Resolution, the County will begin the upset bid process.  The Clerk to the Board 
will advertise the negotiated offer and upset bid process.  The bid process will continue until a 10-
day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the 
amount of the final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners.  The County Board of 
Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30 
days after the final upset bid period has passed.  Closing on the sale of the property will occur within 
30 days of approval of the final high offer.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Selling the property will generate a minimum of $9,000 in one-time revenue.  In addition, selling the 
property will generate future property tax revenue for the County.  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to adopt the attached resolution acknowledging receipt of the offer of $9,000.00 and 
authorizing the upset bid process, and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 9-A 
2. Map of Property 
3. Public Notice  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE UPSET BID PROCESS 
FOR WELL SITE 9-A 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Moore owns certain real property located at 158 Longleaf Dr., Seven 

Lakes, Moore County, North Carolina, being known and more particularly described as Well Site 9-
A and having Parcel ID/LRK #00026759; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property was acquired by the Moore Water and Sewer Authority (“MOWASA”) 
on December 10, 1990, for the purposes of operating a water system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property was transferred to the County by MOWASA on October 1, 1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, since that time, the County has abandoned the well and the property is not presently 

in use; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-269 permits the County to sell real property 

by negotiated offer and upset bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges receipt of an offer from the Seven 

Lakes West Landowners Association in the amount of $9,000.00 for the property described above; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association has paid the required five percent 
deposit on its offer. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore resolves that: 

 
1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the property described above through the 

upset bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269; and 
 
2. The Clerk to the Board shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published.  The 

notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms 
under which the offer may be upset; and 

 
3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with 

their offer to the office of Clerk to the Board within 10 days after the notice of sale is 
published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the Clerk to the Board shall open the 
bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one 
bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer.  In order 
for a bid to be considered, the bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes 
owed to the County; and 

 
4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Clerk to the Board shall cause a new notice of 

upset bid to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed 
without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the 
final high bid shall be reported to the Board of Commissioners; and 

 



5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
(10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
offer; and 

 
6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five 

percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified 
check.  The County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the 
deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  The County 
will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing; and 

 
7. The terms of the final sale are: 

 
 The property is sold in its current condition, as is, and the County gives no 

warranty with respect to usability of the property; and  
 The County must approve the final high bid before the sale is closed; and 
 Closing will occur within 30 days of approval of the final bid at the  Office of the 

Moore County Attorney; and  
 The Buyer is responsible for ad valorem taxes for the current year (non-prorated); 

and 
 The Buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check or by certified check at the 

time of the closing. 
 

8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the 
final high bid is approved and the right to reject at any time all bids; and 

 
9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth 

above is hereby accepted.  The appropriate county officials are authorized to execute the 
instruments necessary to convey the property to the Seven Lakes West Landowners 
Association. 

 
ADOPTED this 4th day of October, 2016 by the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 

 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 



9/27/2016 ConnectGIS Feature Report

http://mooregisweb.moorecountync.gov/ConnectGIS_v6/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map833c560c6e8141dc9a66f09c235cf22dx.htm&t=print 1/1

Moore_mgd
Printed September 27, 2016

See Below for Disclaimer

GIS DISCLAIMER All the information contained on this media is prepared for the inventory of real property found within Moore County. All data is compiled from
recorded deeds, plats, and other public records and data. Users of this data are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be
consulted for verification of the information. All information contained herein was created for the County's internal use. Moore County, its agents and employees make
NO warranty as to the correctness or accuracy of the information set forth on this media whether express or implied, in fact or in law, including without limitation the
implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular use. Any resale of this data is strictly prohibited in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 132‐
10. Grid is based on North Carolina State Plane Coordinate System NAD83 ﴾feet﴿.



PUBLIC NOTICE 
SALE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 

 
An offer of $9,000 has been submitted for the purchase of certain property owned by the 

County of Moore known Well Site 9-A, having Parcel ID/LRK #00026759 which is located at 
158 Longleaf Dr., Seven Lakes, Moore County, North Carolina, and more particularly described 
as follows: 

 
Beginning at a stake in the northern line of Longleaf Road, said 
stake being the southeast corner of Lot 6035 as shown on the plat 
of Seven Lakes West Country Club, Section 2, recorded in Plat 
Cabinet 3, Slide 171, Moore County Registry; thence with the 
eastern line of Lot 6035, N 30 58’01”W 282.75 ft. to a stake in the 
line of W. A. Johnson, Jr.’s property; thence with Johnson’s line S 
88 20’28”E 284.06 feet to a concrete monument; thence S. 30 
58’01”E 129.60 ft. to a stake in the north line of Longleaf Road; 
thence with the line of Longleaf Road, S 59 01’59”W 239.24 ft. to 
the Beginning, and containing 1.13 acres, more or less. 
 

This description comes from Deed Book 755, Page 138, of the Moore County Registry.  The 
instrument transferring the property to the County may be found in the instrument recorded in 
Deed Book 1556, Page 98, of the Moore County Registry. 
 
 The County’s easement to the property is for the purpose of “operation, maintenance, repair, 
and installation of [a] water system.”  (Deed Book 755, Page 161, Moore County Registry).  As 
the County no longer uses the lot for that purpose, please be aware that there is no recorded 
easement for ingress or egress to the property. 
 

Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their 
offer to the office of the Clerk to the Board, 1 Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC 28327, by 5:00 
P.M., October 19, 2016.  At that time the clerk to the board shall open the bids, if any, and the 
highest qualifying bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest 
amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

 
A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer to an amount not less than $9,500.  

In order for a bid to be considered, the bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes 
owed to the County.   

             
A qualifying higher bid must be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) 

of the bid.  The deposit must be made in cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check.  The 
County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer 
subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  If the final high bidder refuses at any time 
to close sale, their deposit will be forfeited to the County. 

 



The process of advertising and accepting upset bids will continue until a 10-day period has 
passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the 
final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
The County Board of Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is 

closed, which it will do within 30 days after the final upset bid period has passed.  The County 
reserves the right to reject any and all bids at any time. 

 
The buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check at closing. 
 
Inquiries about the property and the sale may be made to the Clerk to the Board, 1 

Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC, or at telephone (910) 947-4006 during normal business hours. 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  10/04/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM:  Caroline Xiong, Chief Financial Officer 
  
DATE:  09/30/2016 
  
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing – Limited Obligation Bonds/USDA Refunding 
 
PRESENTER: Caroline Xiong 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Hold the public hearing regarding the issuance of limited obligation bonds of the County in an 
amount not to exceed $33,000,000 in order to refund certain existing limited obligation bonds and to 
acquire refunding bonds of the East Moore Water District, and consider adoption of the Resolution 
Making Certain Findings and Determinations Regarding the Issuance of Limited Obligation Bonds of 
the County. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The County’s financial advisors, Davenport & Company, have provided an analysis of the bond and 
East Moore Water District refunding as well as the potential savings.  The public hearing and 
adoption of the attached resolution are required to proceed with the refunding.  The public hearing 
was duly advertised in The Pilot on September 21, 2016, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-20(g).   
 
FUNDING SOURCE / FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The Board will either select a direct bank loan or a public sale. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
After the Board approves the resolution and selects one of the refinancing options, staff will proceed 
with the LGC approval and process all the documents required for the refinancing with the assistance 
of the financial advisor and bond counsel. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Hold the public hearing regarding the issuance of limited obligation bonds of the County in an 
amount not to exceed $33,000,000 in order to refund certain existing limited obligation bonds and to 
acquire refunding bonds of the East Moore Water District, and make a motion to adopt the Resolution 
Making Certain Findings and Determinations Regarding the Issuance of Limited Obligation Bonds of 
the County. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.



 

 

The Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore, North Carolina, held a regular 
meeting in the in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Second Floor of the Historic Courthouse 
located at 1 Courthouse Square in Carthage, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 5:30 
p.m., on October 4, 2016 

Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, presiding, and Commissioners  
  

Absent:    
  

Also Present: Wayne Vest, County Manager; Caroline Xiong, Chief Financial 
Officer; Laura Williams, Clerk to the Board;   
  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

Chairman Picerno announced that this was the hour and day of the public hearing on the 
proposed issuance of Limited Obligation Bonds of the County pursuant to Section 160A-20 of 
the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended (the “Act”) in an amount not to exceed 
$33,000,000 for the purpose of (1) refunding a portion of the County’s Limited Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2010, previously issued by the County to finance a new County public safety 
complex and certain utility improvements for the County, and now outstanding in the principal 
amount of $27,005,000 (the “2010 Limited Obligation Bonds”) and (2) purchasing the General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds to be issued by the East Moore Water District (the “District”) that 
the District would issue to refund the general obligation bonds previously issued by the District 
(the “Refunded District Bonds”) in order to finance water system improvements for the District.  
Any Limited Obligation Bonds so issued would be secured by a deed of trust on the public safety 
complex and, to the extent the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds are purchased, on 
the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds. 

Chairman Picerno acknowledged due publication of the notice of public hearing in a 
newspaper with a general circulation in said County as required by Section 160A-20(g) of the 
Act and directed the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County to attach the affidavit 
showing publication in said paper on a date at least ten days prior to the date hereof as Exhibit A 
hereto. 

Chairman Picerno then announced that the Board of Commissioners would immediately 
hear anyone who might wish to be heard on advisability of the proposed refunding and the 
issuance of the Limited Obligation Bonds as so described. 

A summary of the comments heard by the Board of Commissioners is set forth in Exhibit 
B. Chairman Picerno then announced the public hearing closed. 

Thereupon, Commissioner __________________ introduced the following resolution, the 
title of which was read and copies of which had been previously distributed to each 
Commissioner: 



 

2 

RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF LIMITED 
OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY  

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the County of 
Moore, North Carolina (the “County”): 

Section 1.  The Board does hereby find and determine as follows: 

(a) The County has previously entered into a Trust Agreement, dated as of October 1, 
2010 (the “Trust Agreement”), between the County and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee, pursuant to which the County issued its Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 now 
outstanding in the principal amount of $27,005,000 (the “2010 Limited Obligation Bonds”) to 
finance a new County public safety complex and certain utility improvements for the County, 
together with related costs.  Based upon an economic analysis by Davenport and Company, 
financial advisor to the County, under current market conditions the County may be able to 
realize significant debt service savings by refunding all or some portion of the 2010 Limited 
Obligation Bonds. To carry out such refunding, the County would issue its Limited Obligation 
Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement and a Supplemental Trust Agreement thereto. 

(b)  Pursuant to Article 6 of Chapter 162A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as 
amended (the “District Act”), the County has created a water district within the County known as 
East Moore Water District (the “District”) as a municipal corporation and body corporate and 
politic under the laws of the State of North Carolina authorized by the laws of the State, 
including, without limitation, The Local Government Bond Act, Article 4 of Chapter 159 of the 
General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended (the “General Obligation Bonds Act”) to 
authorize and issue general obligation bonds to finance the cost of water utility improvements in 
the District.  The District has heretofore authorized and issued its general obligation bonds (the 
“Refunded District Bonds”) in order to finance water system improvements, and the Refunded 
District Bonds bear interest at a rate that is higher than the interest rates available in the current 
financial markets and the District can realize significant interest savings from refunding the 
Refunded District Bonds. 

The County has determined to consider a plan of finance under which (1) the District will 
authorize and issue general obligation refunding bonds (the “District Refunding Bonds”) to 
refund the Refunded District Bonds, such District Refunding Bonds to be purchased by the 
County, and (2) the County will, pursuant to the Act, issue additional Limited Obligation Bonds 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement  to provide funds to the County for the purpose of financing the 
purchase of the District Refunding Bonds, and (3) the County will pledge the District Refunding 
Bonds, the property acquired in the financing, to secure payment of the Limited Obligation 
Bonds.  

(c) After a public hearing and due consideration, the Board has determined to proceed 
with filing an application with the Local Government Commission (the “Commission”) for 
approval by the Commission of an installment financing contract arrangement pursuant to the 
Act, such arrangement to be carried out through the issuance by the County of its Limited 
Obligation Bonds in a principal amount of not to exceed $33,000,000 (the “2016 Limited 



 

3 

Obligation Bonds”) for the purposes described above. The 2016 Limited Obligation Bonds will 
be issued under the Trust Agreement, as supplemented by a Supplemental Trust Agreement.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County is not obligated to issue the 2016 Limited 
Obligation Bonds at all or for all of the purposes described above. 

Section 2.  The Board hereby determines that it is in the County’s best interest to proceed 
at this time with making arrangements for the proposed issuance of the 2016 Limited Obligation 
Bonds for the purpose of (1) refunding all or a portion of the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds and 
(2) purchasing the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds.  The Board hereby directs the 
County Manager and the Chief Financial Officer to proceed with arrangements for the 
development of appropriate financing documents and to take such other actions as shall facilitate 
the financing. 

Section 3.  The Board hereby directs the County Manager and the Chief Financial Officer 
to file an application with the North Carolina Local Government Commission for approval of the 
transaction described in Section 2. In support of the application, the Board hereby finds and 
determines that: 

(a) the cost of refunding the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds and 
providing for the purchase of the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
from funds provided through the issuance of the new limited obligation bonds is 
reasonable compared to the costs of issuing general obligation bonds or other 
available methods of financing and is acceptable to the Board; 

(b) bond counsel to the County will render an opinion to the effect that the 
proposed undertaking as described above is authorized by law and is a purpose 
for which public funds may be expended pursuant to the Constitution and laws of 
the State of North Carolina; 

(c) the debt management policies of the County have been carried out in 
strict compliance with law, and the County is not in default under any obligation 
for repayment of borrowed money; and 

(d) the proposed refunding will result in debt service savings to the 
County, and funds to pay the portion of the 2016 Limited Obligation Bonds 
issued to purchase the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds will be 
provided from the payment of the District General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
so no increase in taxes will be necessary to pay debt service on the 2016 Limited 
Obligation Bonds. 

Section 4.  The determination to proceed with a refunding of the 2010 Limited Obligation 
Bonds only, or to proceed with such refunding and the financing of the purchase of the District 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds through the issuance of additional 2016 Limited 
Obligation Bonds, shall be made at a subsequent meeting of the Board.  In addition, the 
determination as to whether the 2016 Limited Obligation Bonds will be structured as a direct 
loan from a bank or other lending institution or as an underwritten bond offering to the public 
will be made at a subsequent meeting of the Board. 



 

4 

Section 5.  This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

Upon motion of Commissioner _________________, the foregoing resolution entitled 
“RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS REGARDING 
THE ISSUANCE OF LIMITED OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY” was passed by 
the following vote: 

Ayes:   

  

Noes:   

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 



 

5 

I, Laura Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, North 
Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 
proceedings of said Board at a regular meeting held on October 4, 2016 as relates in any way to 
the holding of the public hearing and the passage of the foregoing resolution providing for the 
issuance of limited obligation refunding bonds of said County. 

I HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that notice of said meeting was duly given in 
accordance with G.S. § 143-318.12. 

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of said County, this 4th day of October, 2016. 

[SEAL]   
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of the 

County of Moore, North Carolina



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

[Attach publisher’s affidavit evidencing publication of the Notice of Public Hearing] 



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC HEARING COMMENTS 

[Insert Summary of Public Hearing Comments, if any.  If no comments, state “NO PERSON 
APPEARED TO BE HEARD AT THE PUBLIC HEARING.”] 



Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments – Call To – Staff Report                                  
  

 Agenda Item: _____ 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  September 6, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Call to Public Hearing for a Text Amendment to the Unified 

Development Ordinance  
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST: 
This is a request to call for a public hearing on October 18, 2016 at 5:30pm for the following 
request: 
 
Moore County Planning Staff is requesting the rewrite of the Moore County Unified 
Development Ordinance to include the below Chapters. The revised language is available at 
moorecountync.gov/planning-and-transportation.  
 
Chapter 1.  General Provisions          
Chapter 2.  Review Bodies and Administrator     
Chapter 3.  Intent of Zoning Districts      
Chapter 4.  Zoning Permits  
Chapter 5.  Dimensional Standards    
Chapter 6.  Table of Uses  
Chapter 7.  General Development Standards        
Chapter 8.  Specific Use Standards        
Chapter 9.  Nonconforming Situations 
Chapter 10.   Text Amendments & General Use Rezoning       
Chapter 11.  Conditional Rezoning    
Chapter 12.  Conditional Use Permits   
Chapter 13.  Appeals and Variances  
Chapter 14.  Vested Rights     
Chapter 15.  Watershed Overlay District     
Chapter 16.  Flood Damage Prevention        
Chapter 17.  Enforcement and Penalties  
Chapter 18.  Subdivisions           
Chapter 19.  Definitions      
Chapter 20.  Record of Amendments 
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.B.



Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments – Call To – Staff Report                                  
  

BACKGROUND: 
The Moore County Unified Development Ordinance was adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners on February 18, 2014 by means of combining land use related regulations 
(including Zoning, Subdivision, Watershed, Floodplain, Mining, Swine Farms, and the Wireless 
Communications Facilities Ordinance) into one document for use by the public and the 
development community. Staff was instructed in March of 2015 to rewrite and reorganize the 
UDO to make it simpler, shorter, and reader-friendly. 
 
Overall changes include: 

• North Carolina General Statutes are referenced where applicable. 
• Regulations have been updated to meet current statutory requirements and case law.  
• Duplicate or similar sections have been condensed into one section.  
• Sections are reorganized and separated into relevant chapters. 
• Each section was rewritten to reflect other sections for continuity. 
• Removal of contradictory language including several definitions, specific use standards 

and uses listed in the Table of Uses. 
• Clarified language that was difficult to interpret. 
• Section numbers have been simplified. 
• Added definitions to every land use listed in the Table of Uses.  
• Added the Building Code Group for each land use listed in the Table of Uses. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Call for a public hearing on October 18, 2016.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT:  No financial impact to the County’s FY 2016-2017 
budget. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board met on September 1, 2016 and unanimously recommended approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing for October 18, 2016 at 5:30 PM to consider the 
request for Unified Development Ordinance text amendments. 
 
 



MCTS, Call to Public Hearing, FY18 5311 CTP Application 

  Agenda Item:         

         Meeting Date: October 4, 2016 
 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning and Transportation Director 

 

DATE:  September 23, 2016  

 

SUBJECT: Request for a Call to Public Hearing for the FY18 5311 Community 

Transportation Program Application 

 

PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning and Transportation Director 

 

REQUEST: 
This is a request for a Call to Public Hearing on October 18, 2016 regarding the FY18 5311 Community 

Transportation Program application. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
Moore County Transportation Services received their annual Community Transportation Program Application 

Package on August 29, 2016. For FY 18 the same formula from FY17 was used to determine the total funding 

allocation. The funding allocation formula includes a base level of $30,000 and then the rest was based on the 

amount of funds that were generated by each transit system. The total funding allocation in FY18 is the same 

as FY 17 at $209,382. 

 

Capital projects are also considered, Moore County Transportation does not have any items to submit at this 

time.  

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Hold a public hearing on October 18, 2016 and submit the application prior to the November 4, 2016 deadline. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Total Administrative funding is $246,333 which includes a 15% local share of $36,951. The local share will be 

covered through contract revenues. 

 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to request a public hearing on October 18, 2016 regarding the FY18 5311 Community 

Transportation Program application. 

 

SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
FY18 5311 Community Transportation Program application 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.C.















































































































  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  10/4/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:    
     
FROM: Laurie Weaver, Senior Director of Philanthropy on behalf of Monarch’s Creative Arts & Community 
Center (MCACC) in Southern Pines  
  
DATE:  9/21/16  
  
SUBJECT: Request for Public Hearing 
 
PRESENTER:   Rahnelle Rosado, Community Engagement Team Lead, MCACC 
 
REQUEST: 
Call a public hearing for comment and questions regarding Monarch’s consolidated capital projects application 
for a North Carolina Department of Transportation funding for Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 
with Disabilities for FY2018.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Monarch provides services and supports for individuals with intellectual and developmental 
disabilities at MCACC (Monarch’s Creative Arts and Community Center) in Southern Pines. 
Individuals with disabilities from across Moore County attend the program where they have access to 
daily organized activities, community involvement, and job and skill development. Monarch is 
applying for a grant from the N.C. Department of Transportation under the 5310 Enhanced Mobility 
of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program to provide safe affordable transportation  
to and from the program daily. The grant supports procurement of that transportation.  
 
The application is for funding beginning July 2017 for FY 2018. The grant application deadline is 
November 4, 2016. Monarch applied for and was awarded this funding for FY2017 and is currently 
operating under a contract with Moore County Transportation to provide services. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE / FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
No funding request is being made of Moore County for this application or the transportation project. 
Funding sources include federal transportation funding as provided through the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation and a required local match for which Monarch is responsible. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
When funding is awarded, Monarch administrative staff and local leadership at MCACC will be responsible for 
implementing the project, per the requirements of the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  Monarch 
will work with local public transportation providers as necessary to ensure the requirements of funding are met 
as safe, affordable transportation is provided to people with intellectual and developmental disabilities  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Call a public hearing on Tuesday, October 18, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. or shortly thereafter regarding Monarch’s 
consolidated capital projects application for North Carolina Department of Transportation funding for Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities for FY2018. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.D.



Agenda Item:    
Meeting Date:  October 4, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney   
   Pat Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
DATE:  September 21, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Incentive – CALL TO Public Hearing  
 
PRESENTER: Pay Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Request is hereby made for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to hold a public hearing on 
November 1, 2016, at 5:30PM to consider entering into an economic development agreement with 
Reliance Packaging, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Reliance Packaging, LLC, is an entity operating in the Town of Aberdeen and which was considering 
relocating to another state.  In 2014, Pat Corso, Executive Director of Moore County Partners in 
Progress, approached the County concerning an economic development incentive grant that involved 
the One NC Fund, which would help retain Reliance, provide for Reliance making $3.15 million in 
capital investments within the County, and provide for Reliance hiring 43 new employees making an 
average wage of no less than $610 per week.  
 
The One NC Fund grant, which has already been entered into between the State and the Town of 
Aberdeen, is in an amount not to exceed $52,000 and requires a dollar for dollar match.  As its 
portion of the match, the Town of Aberdeen has entered into an economic development incentive 
grant with Reliance in an amount not to exceed $24,997.  As was presented to the County in 2014, 
the County’s portion of the One NC Fund grant match will be in an amount not to exceed $27,003.   
 
In exchange for the County’s grant of $27,003, Reliance will, at its facility in Aberdeen, NC: 1) make 
$3.15 million in capital investments; and 2) hire 43 new employees making an average wage of no less 
than $610 per week.  Reliance will perform both of these obligations by April 6, 2018.  The grant will be 
paid out over a period of 5 years.  The annual payments will be equal to a percentage of ad valorem taxes 
fully paid for each year, with the amounts being: 
 

Year 1 = 90% 
Year 2 = 80% 
Year 3 = 75% 
Year 4 = 75% 
Year 5 = 60% 

 
Additionally, the Town of Aberdeen included a provision within its agreement that ensured payment of 
the full grant amount.  This was done in the event that the capital investments were made and the jobs 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.E.



created, but the property value did not increase sufficiently for the full grant amount to be paid.  The 
language included within the Town of Aberdeen’s agreement is as follows: 
 

If the Company makes the investments according to the schedule attached 
as Exhibit A as a guideline, the Town shall make Grant payments totaling 
$24,997.00. If after the Year 5 Grant has been made, any money remains 
due and owing to the Company, the Town shall promptly make a sixth and 
final Grant payment for the remainder of the amount due. In the Town’s 
discretion, the sixth Grant payment may be combined with the Year 5 
Grant payment for a single final payment. 

   
No such provision was included in the County’s version.  The County has the following provision: 
 
 In the event the full amount of the Grant, $27,003 is not paid to the Company within the five year 
 period referenced above under item 1, the County is under no obligation to pay any amount 
 beyond the amounts paid in years one through five (which is based upon a percentage of ad 
 valorem taxes paid) not to exceed $27,003. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
In exchange for $27,003 paid by the County over five years, Reliance will make $3.15 million in 
capital investments within the County and hire 43 new employees making an average wage of no less 
than $610 per week. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing on November 1, 2016, at 5:30PM to consider entering into 
an economic development agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Legal Notice 
2. Economic Development Agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The County of Moore proposes to appropriate and expend County funds for an economic 
development incentive pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 158-7.1.  The Moore 
County Board of Commissioners will consider entering into an economic development 
agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC, in which, in exchange for Reliance remaining 
in the County, making $3.15 million in capital investments, and hiring 43 new employees 
making an average wage of no less than $610 per week, the County will provide Reliance 
with an economic development incentive in an amount not to exceed $27,003.  The 
incentive will be spread out over five years and paid in amounts equal to a percentage of 
ad valorem taxes paid by Reliance each year throughout the term of the agreement. 
  
The Moore County Board of Commissioners will hold the public hearing on the County’s 
proposed appropriation and expenditure of funds for the agreement with Reliance 
Packaging, LLC, at 5:30PM on Tuesday, November 1, 2016, at a Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Commissioners, in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, located at the Historic 
Courthouse in Carthage, NC.  
 



14-0402 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
THIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into effective 
the 1st day of November, 2016, by and between the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the 
State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Reliance Packaging, LLC, a limited liability company 
formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Company”), and Alpha Industries, Inc., an 
incorporation formed under the laws of the State of New Jersey (the “Guarantor”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, in the fall of 2014 the County was approached by Partners in Progress, an entity that 
assists the County with its economic development, with regards to the Company purchasing a facility 
and expanding its operations within the Town of Aberdeen (the “Town”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to retain the company and enable its expansion within the Town, Partners 
in Progress presented a proposal to the County that would involve a grant from the State of North 
Carolina’s One North Carolina Fund in the amount of $52,000, which, according to the 
applicable statute at the time, required “the local government to match the funds allocated by the 
State;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal indicated that the Town and the County would split the local 
government match, with the Town providing $24,997 and the County providing $27,003, to 
match the One North Carolina Fund grant of $52,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town applied as the “local government” for the One North Carolina Fund grant 
with the belief and understanding that the County would provide its portion of the local 
government match, which was $27,003; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, within its application to the One North Carolina Fund, provided that it 
would provide $24,997 of the $52,000 local government match; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, within its application to the One North Carolina Fund, provided that the 
County would provide $27,003 of the $52,000 local government match; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State awarded the Town a $52,000 grant under the One North Carolina Fund 
and entered into an agreement in which the Town to obligated itself to the full amount of the 
$52,000 in local government matching funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town took on that obligation with the belief and understanding that the County 
would provide $27,003 towards the matching funds requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, to further evidence the Town’s belief and understanding, the Town entered into a 
grant agreement with the Company in which the Town only obligated itself to a grant in the 
amount of $24,997; and 



FN 14-0402 Page 2 of 9 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County has determined that in order to retain and encourage the expansion of the 
Company in Moore County, it is necessary and desirable to financially assist the Company by 
providing an economic development grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company intends to manufacture plastic packaging products within Moore County 
at a facility located at 155 Anderson St., Aberdeen, NC (the “Facility”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company has purchased the Facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to make capital investments at the Facility of at least $3.15 
Million by April 6, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to create 43 new, full-time positions at the Facility by April 6, 
2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County finds that the consideration the County will receive, based upon the 
Company expanding within the Town, the prospective increase in tax revenues to the County, and the 
increased employment opportunities and income to its citizens, will be equal to or greater than the 
amount of the economic development incentive grant provided for under this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Guarantor has agreed to guarantee the performance and obligations of the Company 
to induce the State of North Carolina, the Town of Aberdeen, and the County of Moore to provide 
the Company with certain economic development incentives. 
 
WHEREAS, the County has a public purpose of promoting economic development in order to 
provide jobs for its citizens, improve business prospects and the quality of life of its citizens, and to 
increase the County's tax base; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §§ 153A-449, 158-7.1 and 158-7.2, the 
County and Company may enter into an agreement for the purposes of economic development; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration and mutual covenants exchanged between the 
parties hereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. The County will provide an economic development incentive grant to the Company (the 
“Grant”), which will be paid to the Company in five consecutive annual payments as follows: 
 
a. Year 1:  The first annual payment will be an amount equal to 90% of ad valorem County 

taxes fully paid by the Company for 2016. 
b. Year 2:  The second annual payment will be an amount equal to 80% of ad valorem 

County taxes fully paid by the Company for 2017. 
c. Year 3:  The third annual payment will be an amount equal to 75% of ad valorem County 

taxes fully paid by the Company for 2018. 
d. Year 4:  The fourth annual payment will be an amount equal to 75% of ad valorem 

County taxes fully paid by the Company for 2019. 



FN 14-0402 Page 3 of 9 

e. Year 5:  The fifth annual payment will be an amount equal to 60% of ad valorem County 
taxes fully paid by the Company for 2020. 
 

The total amount of all payments made under this Grant will not exceed $27,003.00.  Any 
annual payment that would cause the County to exceed the total grant amount will be 
reduced.  If the full grant amount has been paid to the Company prior to the final payment, no 
further payments will be made by the County.  No payment for any year will be made until 
the County has received full payment of all ad valorem taxes assessed by the County for the 
Company’s real and personal property located in Moore County.  
 
In the event the full amount of the Grant, $27,003 is not paid to the Company within the five 
year period referenced above under item 1, the County is under no obligation to pay any 
amount beyond the amounts paid in years one through five (which is based upon a percentage 
of ad valorem taxes paid) not to exceed $27,003.   
 

2. In exchange for the Grant provided for in Section 1, the Company will: 
 
a. Make capital investments at the Facility in an amount of no less than $3,150,000 by April 

6, 2018.  Within 120 days of the execution of this Agreement, the Company will establish 
a schedule for making capital investments at the facility and will provide that schedule to 
the County.  The Company will, at a minimum, operate according to its capital 
investment schedule and will provide documentation to the County annually evidencing 
the Company’s adherence to the capital investment schedule; and 

b. Create 43 new, full-time jobs by April 6, 2018.  For each full-time position, the Company 
will provide employer benefits and pay an average wage of no less than $610.00 per 
week.  Full-time employment is defined as a person working at least 35 hours per week, 
whose wages are subject to withholding, and who is employed in a permanent position.  
Employer benefits is defined as indirect or non-cash compensation, which, among other 
things, includes no less than 50% employer-paid health insurance; and 

c. Maintain operations at the Facility for no less than seven years and six months from the 
date first written above; and 

d. Comply with all requirements of the Company Performance Agreement entered into by 
the Company and the Town, which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by 
reference. 
 

3. If the Company fails to fulfill any obligation incurred by it under this Agreement, the County 
may hold the Company in default and, in addition to any other remedy the County may have 
at law or in equity, the County may do any or all of the following: 
 
a. Terminate this Agreement and make no further payments to the Company; 
b. Recover any and all payments made to the Company; or 
c. Recover all expenses incurred by the County due to the default, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees. 
 

4. To receive each annual payment, the Company must provide the County with the following 
information: 
 
a. A written request for an annual Grant payment designating the year for which the 

payment is requested; and 



FN 14-0402 Page 4 of 9 

b. Proof indicating the increase in the value of the property for the year for which the annual 
Grant payment is requested from the previous year due to capital investments made by 
the Company; and 

c. Proof of payment of taxes due to the County for the year for which the annual Grant 
payment is requested; and 

d. A copy of each quarter’s NCUI101 form for the year for which the annual Grant payment 
is requested. 
 

5. Each annual payment will be based on one tax year only.  Grant payments will not be 
processed or paid more than once per County fiscal year (July 1 – June 30). 
 

6. The Company will provide the County with any additional information it requests evidencing 
compliance with this Agreement or evidencing compliance with either of the agreements 
between the Company and the State of North Carolina or the Town of Aberdeen. 

 
7. The calculation of the incentives is based solely on the change in the valuation of the Facility 

as determined by the County’s Tax Department. 
 

8. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Company will indemnify and 
hold harmless the County, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to 
fees and charges of engineers or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs 
related to court action or arbitration) arising out of or resulting from this Agreement.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 
 

9. Termination.  This Agreement will terminate on December 23, 2023. 
 

10. Guaranty. 
 
a. In order to induce the County to enter into this Agreement, the Guarantor unconditionally 

and irrevocably guarantees, as primary obligor and not as surety, the full, prompt, and 
punctual performance by the Company of all of the Company’s obligations, agreements 
and covenants under this Agreement.  The Guarantor unconditionally guarantees the 
prompt payment of all amounts owed by the Company to the County.  The Guarantor will 
be liable for any remedies or recoveries, including attorneys’ fees incurred in enforcing 
this Agreement, available to the County with respect to this Agreement.  The liability of 
the Guarantor will be primary, joint and several. 

b. The County may exercise its rights against the Guarantor without first taking action or 
exhausting any or all remedies against the Company. 

 
11. Assignment.  This Agreement will not be assigned without the written consent of the County, 

which will not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

12. Availability of Funds.  This Agreement is subject to the availability of funds.  The County 
may terminate this Agreement at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if the 
funds become unavailable. 
 

13. E-verify.  Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the 
County may not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s 



FN 14-0402 Page 5 of 9 

subcontractors under the contract, comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  The Company represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the 
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  Further, the Company 
warrants that any subcontractors used by the Company will be in compliance with the 
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 
 

14. Iran Divestment Act.  The Company certifies that: (i) the Company is not listed on the Final 
Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final 
Divestment List”), and (ii) the Company will not utilize any subcontractor performing work 
under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment 
List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at www.nctreasurer.com/Iran.  The 
website should be updated every 180 days. 
 

15. Governing Law.  The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as 
the rights and duties of the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of 
North Carolina.  All actions relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the 
General Courts of Justice in the County of Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
16. Notice.  All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be 

effective when received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 
COMPANY: SATISH SHARMA 
 RELIANCE PACKAGING, LLC 
 155 ANDERSON STREET 
 ABERDEEN, NC  28315 
 SSHARMA@RELIANCEPKG.COM 
 
GUARANTOR: ANDREW TEO 
 C/O FLEXSOL PACKAGING 
 1531 NW 12th AVENUE 
 POMPANO BEACH, FL  33069 
 ANDREW.TEO@SIGMAPLASTICS.COM 
 
COUNTY: COUNTY OF MOORE 
 ATTN:  WAYNE VEST, COUNTY MANAGER 
 P.O. BOX 905 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327 
 WVEST@MOORECOUNTYNC.GOV 
 

17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 
and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to 
the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended by the written mutual 
agreement of the parties. 
 

18. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts with each being an 
original. 

 



FN 14-0402 Page 6 of 9 

19. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of 
this Agreement. 
 

20. Non-Waiver.  The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this 
Agreement will not affect that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to 
enforce other remedies available to it by law or under this Agreement.  In addition, no waiver 
of any breach or default of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach 
or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 
 

21. Audit.  The County has the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of any and all books, 
accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the performance of this Agreement.  
Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon by both parties.  The 
Company must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week of the request 
for them. 
 

22. Drafted by Both Parties.  This Agreement is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and 
no interpretation will be made to the contrary. 
 

23. Headings.  Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or 
interpretation of any provision. 
 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Agreement is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING THREE PAGES] 



FN 14-0402 Page 7 of 9 

COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
   (Affix Official Seal) 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,       , a Notary Public of Moore County, North Carolina, 
certify that Laura M. Williams personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she is 
Clerk to the Moore County Board of Commissioners, and that by authority duly given and as the act 
of said County, the foregoing Lease Agreement was signed in its name by its Chairman, sealed with 
its official seal, and attested by herself as its Clerk. 
 
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 
 
 
 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 8 of 9 

RELIANCE PACKAGING, LLC 
 
 
  
Satish Sharma, President/Member 
 
Date:   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,      , a Notary Public of Moore County, North Carolina, certify 
that Satish Sharma personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is the President 
of Reliance Packaging, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its 
President, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by himself as its President. 
  
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 9 of 9 

ALPHA INDUSTRIES, INC. 
 
 
  
Mark Teo, Chief Operating Officer 
 
Date:   
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
BROWARD COUNTY 
 
I,      , a Notary Public of Broward County, Florida, certify that 
Mark Teo personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) of Alpha Industries, Inc., a New Jersey corporation, and that by authority duly given 
and as the act of the corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its COO, sealed 
with its corporate seal, and attested by himself as its COO. 
  
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:   
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: John Birath, Executive Officer for Operations, Moore County Schools 
  
DATE: October 4, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: Public School Building Capital Fund NC Education Lottery Application – Land 

Acquisition for New Southern Pines Elementary School 
 
PRESENTER:  John Birath, Executive Officer for Operations, Moore County Schools 
 
 
 
REQUEST:   

Funding for land acquisition for the new Southern Pines Elementary School that will replace 
the Primary and Elementary Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

During the June 13, 2016 Board of Education Regular Monthly School Board Meeting, the 
Board approved the Offer to purchase and Contract Land for the new Southern Pines Elementary 
School.  Previously, at the June 7, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting the Commissioners 
approved the Board plan to acquire property for the new school. 

At the October 3, 2016 Board of Education Business Meeting, Mr. Birath presented to the 
Board a Lottery funding request for a portion of the cost to acquire land for the new school.  The 
requested $460,000 is from the Public School Building Capital Fund NC Education Lottery requiring 
approval from the Board of Commissioners. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 No impact to local funds, this will be paid through the Public School Building Capital Fund 
NC Education Lottery. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Absent any questions or concerns from members of the Board of Commissioners, it is 
recommended that the Board approve the Public School Building Capital Fund NC Education Lottery 
Application. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Public School Building Capital Fund NC Education Lottery Application Form for the 
acquisition of property for the new Southern Pines Elementary School. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.10/4/2016





Agenda Item: 
Meeting Date:  October 4, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 
FROM: Randy Gould, PE 
  Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  September 20, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: WPCP Service Contract for Bio-Solids Trucking  
 
 
REQUEST: 
MOTION TO:  Authorize the Chairman to execute the Service Contract in the amount of $62,600 for the 
trucking of wastewater bio-solids from the WPCP to the Anson Waste Management Facility. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the wastewater treatment process, prior to discharge, the WPCP must remove bio-solids from 
the treated water. The bio-solids are then dewatered and stockpiled. Per DWR, the dewatered bio-solids 
must be removed from the facility and sent to an approved disposal site. Currently, the WPCP has 
approximately 4,000 tons of bio-solids stockpiled on site. Waste Connections has agreed to accept the 
bio-solids at their Anson Waste Management Facility in Polkton, NC. 
 
The WPCP contacted 5 companies for bids on trucking this year. They were MP Enterprises, Harris 
Trucking, Fat Monkey Express, STAT Incorporated and Lime Chem. Fat Monkey Express was the lowest 
bidder. They hauled the bio-solids for FY15 and FY16. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
MOTION TO:  Authorize the Chairman to approve Service Contract Fat Monkey Express.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The Service Contract will be for mobilization and de-mobilization of equipment on site at the WPCP, as 
well as a $15.50 per ton fee to haul the bio-solids to Polkton, NC, the location of the Waste Connections 
landfill. The funds have been budgeted for in the current fiscal year.  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
MOTION TO:  Authorize the Chairman to approve Service Contract with Fat Monkey Express.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Service Contract 
Fat Monkey Express Quote 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.























  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  10/03/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  September 29, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Camp Easter Road Water Project Ordinance  
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the project ordinance for the Camp Easter Road Water Project and authorize the Chairman to 
sign.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County wishes to extend the water service along Camp Easter Road to serve the proposed school 
and other users.  The water service will be provided by and become part of the East Moore Water District. 

   
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve project ordinance.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Estimated project cost for the water service is $600,000.  Portions of the project are to be paid by the 
Developer and others.   

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to recess as the Moore County Board of Commissioners and convene as the East Moore 
Water District Board of Directors. 
 
Make a motion to approve the project ordinance for the Camp Easter Road Water Project and authorize 
the Chairman of the East Moore Water District to sign.     
 
Make a motion to adjourn as the East Moore Water District Board of Directors and reconvene as the 
Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I: Public Works/Camp EasterRoad/ Memo to Board 100416 Water 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.C.



County of Moore 
Camp Easter Road Water   

Capital Project Ordinance for East Moore Water District Fund 
 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Moore, North Carolina, 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the 
following project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 Section 1.  The project authorized is the Camp Easter Road Water Capital Project for 
East Moore Water District Fund. 
 
 Section 2. The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the project 
within the term of the budget contained herein. 
 
 Section 3. The following amounts are appropriated for the Camp Easter Road Water  
Capital Project for East Moore Water District Fund: 
      
      
         Budget   
 

Water Extensions     $   600,000  
 
Total       $   600,000  
 

 Section 4. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the 
Camp Easter Road Water Capital Project for East Moore Water District Fund: 
 
  Agency       Budget   
  Other Contributions               $   282,400 
  Transfer from EMWD              $   317,600 
     

Total                 $   600,000    
 
 Section 5.  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Project Fund 
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the funding agency, 
North Carolina General Statutes and federal regulations.  
 
 Section 6. The Finance Officer is directed to report the financial status of the project, 
as requested by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 Section 7. Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making 
payments as due.   
 
   
 
 
 



Section 8. This Capital Project Ordinance shall be entered in the minutes by the Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners and within five days after adoption of this Ordinance, copies shall be 
filed with the finance officer, and Clerk to the Board of Commissioners.  
 
Adopted this 4th day of October, 2016.  

 
 
___________________________ 

      Chairman 
      Moore County Board of Commissioners 
___________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board   



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  10/03/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  September 29, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Camp Easter Road Sewer Project Ordinance  
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the project ordinance for the Camp Easter Road Sewer Project and authorize the Chairman to 
sign.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County wishes to extend the sewer service along Camp Easter Road to serve the proposed school 
and other users.  The sewer service will be provided by and become part of Moore County Public 
Utilities. 

   
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve project ordinance.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Estimated project cost for the water service is $1,000,000.  Portions of the project are to be paid by the 
Developer and others.   

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the project ordinance for the Camp Easter Road Sewer Project and authorize 
the Chairman of the Moore County Board of Commissioners to sign.     
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I: Public Works/Camp Easter Road/ Memo to Board 100416 Sewer 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.



County of Moore 
Camp Easter Road Sewer  

Capital Project Ordinance for Public Utilities Fund 
 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Moore, North Carolina, 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the 
following project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 Section 1.  The project authorized is the Camp Easter Road Sewer Capital Project for 
the Public Utilities Fund. 
 
 Section 2. The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the project 
within the term of the budget contained herein. 
 
 Section 3. The following amounts are appropriated for the Camp Easter Road Sewer 
Capital Project for the Public Utilities Fund: 
      
      
         Budget   
 

Sewer Extensions     $1,100,000  
       

Total       $1,100,000  
 

 Section 4. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the 
Camp Easter Road Sewer Capital Project for Public Utilities Fund: 
 
  Agency       Budget   
  Other Contributions                $   517,600 
  Transfer from MCPU                $   582,400   
   

Total                  $1,100,000    
 
 Section 5.  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Project Fund 
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the funding agency, 
North Carolina General Statutes and federal regulations.  
 
 Section 6. The Finance Officer is directed to report the financial status of the project, 
as requested by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 Section 7. Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making 
payments as due.   
 
   
 
 
 



Section 8. This Capital Project Ordinance shall be entered in the minutes by the Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners and within five days after adoption of this Ordinance, copies shall be 
filed with the finance officer, and Clerk to the Board of Commissioners.  
 
Adopted this 4th day of October, 2016.  

 
 
___________________________ 

      Chairman 
      Moore County Board of Commissioners 
___________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board   



  Agenda Item:    
         Meeting Date:  10/4/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney   
 
DATE:  September 20, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Moore County Noise Ordinance Revision 
 
PRESENTER: Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney 
 
 
REQUEST: 
The Board of Commissioners approval of the revision of the Noise Ordinance in the Moore County 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the September 8, 2016 Work Session of the Board of Commissioners, Sheriff Neil Godfrey 
requested that the Board consider a revision of §10-41(3) of the Noise Ordinance which would 
remove the referenced hours of “between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.” in order to provide the Sheriff 
the authority to issue citations as necessary at any time. 
 
Moore County Noise Ordinance, §10-41(3) currently reads as follows: 
 

Radio, phonographs, CD player, tape player, television.  The playing of any radio, phonograph, 
CD player, tape player, television set or other machine or device for the producing of sound, a 
musical instrument, or a performing band, in such manner or with such volume, between 11:00 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m., so as to annoy or disturb the quiet, comfort or repose of any person in any 
dwelling, hotel, motel or other type of residence within the area of audibility.   

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve the request 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the revision of §10-41(3) of the Moore County Noise Ordinance deleting 
the hours of “between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.” in order to provide the Sheriff the authority to 
issue citations as necessary at any time.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Moore County Noise Ordinance, page CD10:4  
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.















 Agenda Item:    
        Meeting Date:  October 4, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  J. Wayne Vest  
 
DATE:  October 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Moore County Schools Funding Formula 
 
PRESENTER: Wayne Vest 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Request the Board consider approving a resolution for the annual funding formula for the Moore 
County Schools current expense, capital outlay, digital learning and the decline in debt service 
allocation based on the following considerations: 
 

 The 40% annually budgeted property and sales tax estimation will not include revenue 
generated from Article 46 (1/4%) sales tax which will be used solely to pay for the Moore 
County Public Schools major capital building project needs.  
 

 The decline in debt service will be allocated based upon the annual debt service due through 
FY29 (Exhibit A attached) as compared to the benchmark year FY13/14 and as calculated 
prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
To simplify the annual funding of Moore County Schools (MCS) a formula has been developed using 
a percentage of annually budgeted property and sales tax revenue anticipated by the County.  This 
funding formula was used for FY17 budget year and will be effective for all subsequent fiscal year 
budgets. 
 
The generic formula is as follows: 40% of the projected property tax + projected sales tax revenue 
(Article 39, 40, 42 and Old Article 44 (Medicaid hold harmless) as approved in the Moore County 
Budget Ordinance (i.e. 40% will not be calculated based upon the actual amount of taxes received) = 
the amount of funding MCS receives on a fiscal year basis for current expense, capital outlay and 
digital learning.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

 The funding calculation was used for the FY17 budget of the County. 
 The calculation will be used for all subsequent fiscal year budgets. 

 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.F.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

 Annual funding allocation for MCS current expense, capital outlay and digital learning (in 
total) will be calculated at 40% of budgeted County General Fund revenue of property and 
sales tax (Article 39, 40, 42 and Old Article 44 (Medicaid hold harmless)) excluding any 
Article 46 (1/4%) sales tax budgeted. 

 
 The decline in debt service will be allocated based upon the annual debt service due through 

FY29 (Exhibit A attached) as compared to the benchmark year FY13/14 and as calculated 
prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Request the Board approve the attached Resolution to approve the annual funding formula for Moore 
County Schools. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Resolution for the Funding Formula for MCS 
 Exhibit A – Decline in Debt Service 
 Moore County Schools Funding Sheet from FY16/17 Budget Presentation 
 Moore County Schools Project List 



 

RESOLUTION FOR ANNUAL FUNDING FORMULA FOR MOORE COUNTY SCHOOLS 
Effective July 1, 2016 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Moore County Board of Commissioners desires to streamline the budgeting process with 
Moore County  Schools  (MCS)  to  simplify and  improve  the efficiency of  the budgeting process with a 
foundation paved with foreseeable expectations and reasonable predictability; and 
 
WHEREAS, a funding strategy has been developed which will streamline the process for annual funding 
of the MCS for years to come; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first step  in the funding process  is to determine the current expense, capital outlay and 
digital  learning  allocation  for MCS  which  represents  40%  of  the  County’s  total  budgeted  sales  and 
property tax; and, 
 
WHEREAS, budgeted sales tax  for this calculation will  include Article 39, Article 40, and Article 42 and 
will exclude any budgeted revenues or proceeds generated or received from Article 46 sales tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, 40% of FY16/17 budgeted property  tax and sales  tax revenue of $71,323,789  ($16,473,000 
budgeted sales  tax, excluding any proceeds budgeted  for Article 46 sales  tax + $54,850,789 budgeted 
property  tax)  equates  to  $28,529,515  (which  was  allocated  as  $27,029,515  for  current  expense, 
$750,000 for capital outlay and $750,000 for digital learning); and, 
 
WHEREAS, $28,529,515 will be the benchmark effective July 1, 2016 and moving forward; thereafter, if 
budgeted  sales  and  property  taxes  decrease  from  $71,323,789, MCS will  continue  to  be  funded  at 
$28,529,515.  However, if budgeted sales and property taxes increase to an amount above $71,323,789, 
MCS will receive 40% of the total budgeted amount; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has historically paid the debt service for MCS, and for FY 2013‐2014 the amount 
paid in debt service alone was $5,533,171 which will become the benchmark year ; and  
 
WHEREAS, the debt service amount for MCS for FY 2016‐2017  is $5,324,881 which  is a decline  in debt 
service of $208,290 from the FY2013‐2014 benchmark year; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the decline  in debt service each year  from  the benchmark amount will be allocated based 
upon  the current amount of annual debt service due  through FY2029 as calculated  to  the benchmark 
year FY13/14 prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project in May 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the  decline  in  debt  service  amount  will  be  allocated  into  the  newly  established  County 
Capital Reserve Fund for MCS and used for School capital building needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has approved the position of County Capital Projects Manager at 
their September 20, 2016 regularly scheduled Board of Commissioners meeting; and  
 



WHEREAS, it is anticipated that this position will be allowed to and will work closely with Moore County 
Schools  personnel  on  scope,  design,  contract  development,  on  site  activities,  change  orders,  pay 
applications, etc. for the first four school projects as identified in the attachment. 
 
NOW  THEREFORE  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  effective  July  1,  2016  that  the  Moore  County  Board  of 
Commissioners approves the annual funding formula above and authorizes the Chairman to execute this 
resolution. 
 
Adopted this 4th day of October, 2016. 
 
              _____________________________________ 
              Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
              Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 









 Agenda Item:    
        Meeting Date:  October 4, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  J. Wayne Vest  
 
DATE:  October 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Sandhills Community College Funding Formula 
 
PRESENTER: Wayne Vest 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Request the Board consider approving a resolution to amend the annual funding formula for Sandhills 
Community College Current Expense allocation to include all phases of the funding formula into one 
resolution including current expense, the allocation of reduction in debt service dollars, loan 
repayment, and the 6% Unassigned General Fund Balance allocation based on the following 
considerations: 
 

 The 6% annually budgeted property and sales tax estimation will not include revenue 
generated from Article 46 (1/4%) sales tax which will be used solely to pay for the Moore 
County Public Schools major capital building projects.  
 

 The decline in debt service will be allocated based upon the annual debt service due through 
FY29 (Exhibit A attached) as calculated prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project. 
 

 The 6% allocation based on the unassigned General Fund Transfer determined after the CAFR 
(Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) is presented to the Board each year. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
To simplify the annual funding of Community College (SCC) current expense, a formula has been 
developed using a percentage of annually budgeted property and sales tax revenue anticipated by the 
County.  This funding formula was in effect July 1, 2014.   
 
The generic formula is as follows: 6% of the projected property tax + sales tax revenue (Article 39, 
40, 42 and Old Article 44 (Medicaid hold harmless) as approved in the Moore County Budget 
Ordinance (i.e. 6% will not be calculated based upon the actual amount of taxes received) = the 
amount of funding SCC receives on a fiscal year basis.   
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
None 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.G.



 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

 Annual funding allocation for SCC current expense will be calculated at 6% of budgeted 
County General Fund revenue of property and sales tax (Article 39, 40, 42 and Old Article 44 
(Medicaid hold harmless)) excluding any Article 46 (1/4%) sales tax budgeted. 

 The decline in debt service will be allocated based upon the current amount of annual debt 
service due through FY29 (Exhibit A attached) prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Request the Board approve the attached Resolution to amend the annual funding formula for 
Sandhills Community College (SCC) as follows: 
 

 Annual funding allocation for College Current Expense will be calculated at 6% of budgeted 
County General Fund revenue of property and sales tax excluding any revenue budgeted for  
Article 46 (1/4%) sales tax 

 
 The decline in debt service will be allocated based upon the amount of current annual debt 

service due through FY29 (Exhibit A attached) prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Resolution to amend the annual funding and debt service reduction allocation for SCC 
 Exhibit A 



 
AMENDED RESOLUTION FOR ANNUAL FUNDING FORMULA FOR SANDHILLS COMMUNITY COLLEGE  

EFFECTIVE July 1, 2016 
 

WHEREAS, the County and Sandhills Community College (SCC) have a mutual agreement on an annual 
funding formula; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  it  is  the  County’s  desire  to  consolidate  all  prior  resolutions  into  one  resolution  for 
clarification, the following Parts 1‐3 of the Funding Formula are described in detail; and, 
 
Part 1 of Funding Formula, Current Expense: 

To  calculate  the  annual  current expense  allocation  for  SCC  take  the  annually budgeted property  and 

sales  tax  (Article  39,  40,  42  and  Old  Article  44  that  is  now Medicaid  Hold  Harmless)  amounts  and 

calculate 6%.   Any budgeted  revenue generated  from Article 46  sales  tax will not be  included  in  the 

annual calculation. 

Example:    Budgeted  property  tax  for  FY  2016/2017  is  $54,850,789  and  budgeted  sales  tax  for  FY 

2016/2017  is $16,473,000 = $71,323,789.   Six percent (6%) of this amount  is $4,279,427.   This amount 

shall become the budgeted amount of current expense SCC receives in FY 2016/2017. 

The benchmark year will be FY 2014/2015 where SCC’s current expense was $4,265,064 effective July 1, 

2014 and moving forward; thereafter, if the 6% calculation of budgeted sales and property taxes is less 

than the benchmark year, SCC will be funded at the benchmark level of $4,265,064.  However, if the 6% 

of budgeted sales and property tax increases to an amount above the benchmark level, SCC will receive 

the total amount calculated (see attached Exhibit B). 

Any proceeds from the  implementation of Article 46 sales tax will be used solely to pay for the Moore 

County Public School System’s major capital building projects. 

Part 2 of Funding Formula, Debt Service and Debt Service Reduction: 

a)  The County has historically paid the debt service for SCC, and for FY 2013/2014 the amount paid 

in debt service alone was $1,781,368.  For FY 2016/2017 it is projected that the County will pay 

SCC’s debt service in the amount of $1,691,838 which is a reduction in debt service of $89,530 

from  FY  2013/2014.    The  debt  service  amount  of  $1,781,368  from  FY2013/2014 will  be  the 

benchmark to determine the reduction or increase in debt service.   The decline in debt service 

each year from the benchmark amount will be allocated based upon the annual debt service due 

through FY29 (see attached Exhibit A) as calculated prior to the 2016 Bond Refunding Project.   

In  FY2014/2015  the  County  budgeted  $47,964  in  debt  reduction,  FY  2015/2016  the  County 

budgeted $92,254  in debt reduction and for FY 2016/2017 there  is budgeted a decline  in debt 

service of $89,530.   This amount of debt reduction will be allocated  into the newly established 

County capital reserve fund for SCC for debt service.  It may be applied to future capital needs, 

future debt service expenses for capital projects, or for loan repayment to the County for SCC.     



In years where there is an increase in debt service from the benchmark number of $1,781,368, 

$0.00 money will be applied to the new capital reserve fund for SCC. 

b)  Effective July 1, 2014, the County and SCC had determined the amount of County funds needed 

for the expansion project  is $1,800,000, and the County desired to provide this amount  in the 

form of a one‐time loan to SCC from the County’s General Fund; and 

 

The  repayment  of  the  $1,800,000  loan,  plus  interest  in  an  amount  equal  to  25  basis  points 

above the highest interest rate set by the North Carolina Cash Management Trust Fund within a 

12 month period on a calendar year basis beginning with calendar year 2014,  to  the County’s 

General Fund Balance will originate from the projected savings from the yearly reduction in debt 

service  for  SCC.    Pursuant  to  the  spreadsheet  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A  and  herein 

incorporated  by  reference  as  if  fully  set  forth,  the  County  is  estimated  to  have  received 

repayment plus interest, calculated annually on the outstanding balance, in an amount that is in 

excess of the borrowed amount of $1,800,000, plus interest as stated above, by June 30, 2020.  

(Please also see Exhibit A.)   

Part 3 of the Funding Formula, Unassigned Fund Balance Transfer:  

This  funding will be determined after each  fiscal year end closing wherein SCC will receive an amount 

that equates to 6% above the 15% unassigned General Fund Balance that the Board of Commissioners 

allocates to the County’s capital reserve fund for governmental projects after the prior fiscal year audit 

is completed.   The 6% above the 15% unassigned General Fund Balance will be placed  in the County’s 

established  Fund  for  SCC  and  can  be  applied  to  current  or  future  capital  needs,  future  debt  service 

expenses for capital needs, or for loan repayment to the County for SCC. 

WHEREAS, the resolution supersedes all other resolutions for the Annual Funding Formula adopted on 

June 17, 2014 and any other subsequent provisions up and to this date. 

NOW  THEREFORE  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  effective  July  1,  2016  that  the  Moore  County  Board  of 

Commissioners approves these annual funding formulas above and authorizes  its Chairman to execute 

this resolution. 

Adopted this 4th day of October, 2016. 

______________________________ 
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 

           Moore County Board of Commissioners 
_____________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 



Debt Service Amounts by Fiscal Year (P&I)

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

College Annual Debt Service $1,781,368 $1,733,403 $1,689,114 $1,691,836 $1,182,462 $1,177,203 $1,144,586 $1,209,483 $1,462,923 $1,417,131 $1,370,636 $1,323,708 $1,276,636 $1,230,204 $1,183,088 $652,786

College Base Year (FY14) Debt Service $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368 $1,781,368

College Annual Debt Service Reduction $47,965 $92,254 $89,532 $598,906 $604,165 $636,782 $571,885 $318,445 $364,237 $410,732 $457,660 $504,732 $551,164 $598,280 $1,128,582
College Cumulative Debt Reduction $47,965 $140,219 $229,751 $828,657 $1,432,822 $2,069,604 $2,641,489 $2,959,934 $3,324,171 $3,734,903 $4,192,563 $4,697,295 $5,248,459 $5,846,739 $6,975,321

C.A.F.R Allocation Estimate $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015 $233,015
TOTAL Estimated For GF Repayment $280,980 $606,249 $928,796 $1,760,717 $2,597,897 $3,467,694 $4,272,594 $4,824,054 $5,421,306 $6,065,053 $6,755,728 $7,493,475 $8,277,654 $9,108,949 $10,470,546

EXAMPLE USING ONLY DEBT SERVICE REDUCTION DOLLARS FOR REPAYMENT

Allocation/Balance From Prior Year $1,800,000 $1,770,035 $1,713,182 $1,657,913 $1,092,166 $509,844

Annual Interest (estimated at 2.00%) $18,000 $35,401 $34,264 $33,158 $21,843 $10,197

Balance Due $1,818,000 $1,805,436 $1,747,445 $1,691,072 $1,114,009 $520,041

Payment Allocation (January each year) $47,965 $92,254 $89,532 $598,906 $604,165 $636,782

Balance Remaining After Payment $1,770,035 $1,713,182 $1,657,913 $1,092,166 $509,844 ‐$116,741

Note:  FY15 interest is calculated at 6 months

EXAMPLE USING BOTH DEBT SERVICE REDUCTION DOLLARS AND C.A.F.R ALLOCATION DOLLARS FOR REPAYMENT

Allocation/Balance From Prior Year $1,800,000 $1,537,020 $1,242,491 $944,794 $131,769

Annual Interest (estimated at 2.00%) $18,000 $30,740 $24,850 $18,896 $2,635

Balance Due $1,818,000 $1,567,760 $1,267,341 $963,690 $134,404

Payment Allocation (January each year) $280,980 $325,269 $322,547 $831,921 $837,180

Balance Remaining After Payment $1,537,020 $1,242,491 $944,794 $131,769 ‐$702,776

Note:  FY15 interest is calculated at 6 months

08 Bond , Matures FY2028
Schools 80%
College 20%

2009A Bond, Matures FY2029
Schools 74.5763%

College 25.4237%

2009B Bond, Matures FY2018

Schools 76%

College 24%

2012 Bond, Matures FY2017

Schools 52.1739%

College 47.8261%

C:\Users\clerktoboard\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\OR6PYSOI\10 4 2016 SCC Exhibit A Debt Savings by FY.xlsx 9/27/2016



 Agenda Item:    
        Meeting Date:  October 4, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  J. Wayne Vest  
 
DATE:  October 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Courts Facility Project Funding 
 
PRESENTER: Wayne Vest 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Request the Board consider approving a resolution for the funding for the Moore County Courts 
Facility project using and the decline in debt service allocation based on the following considerations: 
 

 The decline in debt service for non-educational debt for the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds 
for the Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center as referenced in Exhibit A, column 4. 
 

 The decline in debt service from the refunding of the 2008 and 2009 General Obligation 
Bonds for the Schools and College on May 31, 2016 as referenced in Exhibit A, column 5.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners desires to streamline the budgeting process and create a 
reserve for the construction of a new Moore County Courts Facility where funds from the decline in 
debt service will be transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund for the 
construction of the Courts Project. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

 The funding calculation was used for the FY17 budget of the County. 
 The calculation will be used for all subsequent fiscal year budgets. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
The decline in debt service will be budgeted in the General Fund and transferred to the Capital 
Reserve Fund for the construction of the Courts Facility Project. 
 

 The decline in debt service for non-educational debt for the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds 
for the Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center as referenced in Exhibit A, column 4. 
 

 The decline in debt service from the refunding of the 2008 and 2009 General Obligation 
Bonds for the Schools and College on May 31, 2016 as referenced in Exhibit A, column 5 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. H.



 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Request the Board approve the attached Resolution to approve the annual funding formula for the 
Moore County Courts Facility project as follows: 
 

 The decline in debt service for non-educational debt for the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds 
for the Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center as referenced in Exhibit A, column 4. 
 

 The decline in debt service from the refunding of the 2008 and 2009 General Obligation 
Bonds for the Schools and College on May 31, 2016 as referenced in Exhibit A, column 5.  
 

 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Resolution for the Annual Funding for the Moore County Courts Facility Project 
 Exhibit A – Decline in Debt Service 



 

RESOLUTION FOR ANNUAL FUNDING FOR THE MOORE COUNTY COURTS 
FACILITY 

Effective July 1, 2016 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Moore County Board of Commissioners desires to streamline the budgeting process and 
create a reserve for the construction of a new Moore County Courts Facility and to simplify and improve 
the  efficiency  of  the  budgeting  process with  a  foundation  paved with  foreseeable  expectations  and 
reasonable predictability for future development; and 
 
WHEREAS, a funding strategy has been developed which will streamline the process for funding a new 
Courts Facility in Moore County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first step  in the funding process  is to determine the decline  in debt service for the non‐
education debt of the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds (LOB) for the Rick Rhyne Public Safety Center (see 
Exhibit A, column 4 attached); and 
 
WHEREAS,  this  decline  in  debt  service will  be  budgeted  in  the  County  General  Fund  annually  as  a 
transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund for the Courts Facility project; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the County refunded 2008 and 2009 General Obligation  (GO) Bonds  for  the Moore County 
Schools (MCS) and Sandhills Community College (SCC) on May 31, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the additional decline in debt service from this refunding (See Exhibit A, column 5 attached) 
will be set aside in the Moore County Capital Reserve Fund for additional savings to the Courts project; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, additional funding sources may be identified through other revenue streams or cost savings 
measures and the Board may choose to allocate these resources to funding the Courts Facility Project 
(see Exhibit A, column 6, added for reference).   
 
 
NOW  THEREFORE  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  effective  July  1,  2016  that  the  Moore  County  Board  of 
Commissioners approves  the  funding strategy  for  the Moore County Courts Facility Project above and 
authorizes the Chairman to execute this resolution. 
 
Adopted this 4th day of October, 2016. 
 
              _____________________________________ 
              Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
              Moore County Board of Commissioner 
__________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 



EXHIBIT A

Revised Decline in Debt Service after Education Bond Refunding

Work Session September 8, 2016

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Fiscal 

Year

Schools-Decline in 

Debt Service prior to 

and after Refunding- 

to Capital Reserve

College-Decline in 

Debt Service prior to 

and after Refunding-

to Capital Reserve

Courts - Decline 

in Non 

Educational 

Debt  Service

After Bond 

Refunding - GO 

Educational 

Bonds - Savings to 

Courts Project

Additional 

Funding Sources 

or Cost Savings to 

be included

Total Courts 

Project Reserve 

Accumulated

FY16/17 $208,290 $89,530 $90,019 $249,499 $339,518

FY17/18 $1,386,540 $598,906 $359,825 $147,043 $846,386

FY18/19 $1,315,331 $604,165 $891,925 $362,043 $2,100,354

FY19/20 $1,435,276 $636,782 $931,925 $507,281 $3,539,560

FY20/21 $1,140,760 $571,886 $1,152,800 $511,693 $5,204,053

FY21/22 $460,664 $318,444 $1,224,050 $510,481 $6,938,584

FY22/23 $620,510 $364,237 $1,295,300 $510,593 $8,744,477

FY23/24 $783,170 $410,732 $1,366,550 $514,237 $10,625,264

FY24/25 $948,917 $457,660 $1,432,800 $511,962 $12,570,026

FY25/26 $1,112,470 $504,732 $1,490,000 $511,338 $14,571,364

FY26/27 $1,274,150 $551,164 $1,541,837 $513,725 $16,626,926

FY27/28 $1,437,834 $598,280 $2,378,675 $513,926 $19,519,527

FY28/29 $3,618,332 $1,128,582 $2,415,925 $194,627 $22,130,079

FY29/30 $5,533,171 $1,781,368 $2,447,925 $24,578,004

FY30/31 $5,533,171 $1,781,368 $2,479,925 $27,057,929

Assumptions:

Decline for Schools and College is the same before and after refunding Education Bonds

Refunded 2008 and 2009 GO Bonds for Schools and College on May 31, 2016

Benchmark for Schools and College is from FY13/14

Benchmark for Courts is from FY15/16, $3,151,925 (RRPSC, San Lease and Roll off Trucks)

San Lease paid FY16/17, Roll off trucks paid FY15/16

 \\moore\shared\Departments\Finance\fileserv\FIN-OFF\Budgets\Budget FY 16 17\Debt Service Due by Fiscal Year General Fund

Courts Resolution 10 4 2016 9/23/2016



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  10/04/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 09/27/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / RSVP Advisory Council 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint two new members to the RSVP Advisory Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The RSVP Advisory Council has recommended the appointments of Marie Carbrey and Marilyn 
McCollum. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notifications and update record accordingly. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint Marie Carbrey and Marilyn McCollum to the RSVP Advisory Council for 
three-year terms expiring October 31, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Appointment Applications 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.











  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  10/04/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 09/27/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Library Board of Trustees 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint member to the Library Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current term of service for Barbara Allred on the Library Board of Trustees expires in October.  
Ms. Allred has served four terms, but desires to continue and is recommended to be reappointed.   
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification and update record accordingly. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to waive the term limit and reappoint Barbara Allred to the Library Board of Trustees 
for an additional three-year term expiring October 31, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Recommendation from Library Director 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.




	AGENDA
	V.A. 9/20/16 MINUTES
	V.B. SCC DONATION SURPLUS CARS
	V.C. DEED OF DEDICATION
	V.D. AGING FEE SCHEDULE
	V.E. UPSET BID WELL LOT 9A
	VI.A. PUBLIC HEARING: REFUNDING
	VI.B. CALL TO: UDO TEXT AMENDMENT
	VI.C. CALL TO: CTP APPLICATION
	VI.D. CALL TO: MONARCH APP.
	VI.E. CALL TO: EC DEV INCENTIVE
	VIII.A. LOTTERY APPLICATION
	VIII.B. BIO-SOLIDS CONTRACT
	VIII.C. CAMP EASTER WATER ORD
	VIII.D. CAMP EASTER SEWER ORD
	VIII.E.NOISE ORDINANCE REVISION
	VIII.F. SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA
	VIII.G. COLLEGE FUNDING FORMULA
	VIII.H. COURT PROJECT FUNDING
	IX.A. APPTS / RSVP
	IX.B. APPTS / LIBRARY



